
UNITARIAN SOCIETY OF NEW HAVEN 

MINUTES OF THE CONGREGATIONAL MEETING 

May 20, 2018 

 

Approved November 11, 2018 

 

Attendance: 68 
Quorum requires 36 members. 
 
D. Gelperin called the Meeting to order at 12:04 pm and P. Miller recorded the 
minutes. D. Gelperin read the USNH Covenant.  
 
D. Gelperin and P.J. Deak counted 68 members present for a quorum.  
 
D. Stagg introduced the mortgage proposal presentation. The proposed covenant 
and the mortgage proposal are attached at the end of the minutes. The 
mortgage for the construction of the sanctuary was refinanced in 2008 to allow 
additional borrowing for the installation of a sprinkler system. The current 
mortgage balloons and must be paid back by July 2, 2018. The exterior dryvit 
must be repaired or replaced. This is estimated to be a $60,000 expense and will 
be added to the $380,000 required for the mortgage repayment. The best bank 
option from the three banks contacted is with Webster Bank for 15 years at 5.9%. 
This would halve our mortgage obligation. Endowment & Legacies has proposed a 
plan to match the bank, but this plan will be less expensive, having little or no 
closing costs. 
 
F. Morrison talked about the proposed mortgage covenant. G. Seaman put 
together the documents which were presented. G. Burton provided pro bono 
advise on the covenant. L. Lloyd Joiner assisted with the preparation of the 
proposal. The proposed covenant will reduce our annual operating costs and will 
reduce the closing costs that would be required by a bank. We will maintain the 
expected return on the endowment. In 2014, we began a 10-year campaign to 
grow the endowment to $2.5 million by 2024. This is intended to provide future 
income for USNH. We would be able to contribute $50,000 per year to operating 
expenses when that goal is reached.  
 



The mortgage plan is not a loan. It is a mortgage payment contribution. Funds 
would be paid back over 15 years. After 7 years, the interest rate would be 
recalculated within a range of 3-7%. The money does not come from the 
endowment principle. It will come from growth funds. The endowment is worth 
$1,100,000. Over half that amount is from growth. We need $440,000 for this 
proposal. 
 
J. Hill stated that this plan will not reduce the value of the endowment. 
 
G. Feeley asked if it really is as clear cut as it sounds? L. Mehta responded that we 
are paying ourselves the interest. The endowment does not become smaller.  
 
J. Rosenthal commended the hard work behind the plan. Will the obligation be 
the same as if we borrowed from a bank? How do we repossess our building for 
failure to repay the amount? 
 
J. Trimble Shapiro asked if there are no restrictions in the bylaws on taking money 
from the growth of the endowment fund? F. Morrison replied that is correct. 
 
D. Johnson said that we are borrowing from our 401K.  If we can only use the 
interest on the endowment, why not pay off the mortgage? F. Morrison replied 
that would abrogate the goal of growing the endowment to $2.5 million. D. 
Johnson asked if that is the only way to fulfill the commitment? F. Morrison 
answered, yes, it is.  We will continue to encourage contributions to the 
endowment. 
 
S. Forman asked if we do not spend the $500,000 for the mortgage, what would 
we do with the money? F. Morrison stated that the congregation determines that. 
We will continue to make 2% contribution to the operating budget. The 
calculation for the 2% will not be reduced by framing this “mortgage” as an asset 
to be paid back. 
 
L. deVos asked why is it for 7 years? F. Morrison replied that it is a 15-year 
payback period with a chance to revisit at 7 years, given that we can’t predict the 
market. The proposal is to use the previous 3 years of endowment reports to 
calculate the new rate. L. deVos noted that we might be at $2.5 million by then. 
 



B. Congdon noted that the advantage is that during the second half of the 
repayment period we won’t be paying interest on the full $440,000. The principal 
will have been partially repaid. This is not typical of a bank loan. 
 
P. Trotta asked if a motion is in order? D. Gelperin replied that the discussion can 
continue before a motion is made. 
 
J. Copes asked is this legal in Connecticut? What happens if there is a change that 
would render it not legal? F. Morrison stated that G. Burton advised this conforms 
with all known non-profit laws. Our bylaws may be changed but they would be 
changed by this body. 
 
D. Jones commented that this is a compromise proposal. This is the best 
compromise we could get to repay the money and keep the endowment going. It 
will give us flexibility. 
 
A. Clark noted that the clear savings will be transaction costs. What are those 
costs? F. Morrison replied that they are estimated at $5,000 – $8,000.  
 
D. Stagg stated that the Webster costs would be around $5000. We won’t know 
the exact costs until the documents are signed. A. Clark then commented that 
after 7 years we have the risk that our interest rate goes up if the market 
improves. This risk is not so large. The pro is that we are saving costs, the con is if 
the market takes off we have an increased interest rate. F. Morrison stated that 
we caped the interest rate at 7%. This mitigates the risk. If the market tanks we 
stay with 3% to maintain income. Another risk is that USNH decides not to pay it 
back, therefore we have the covenant. 
 
L. Barrett asked whether another benefit is that we are not paying up front 
interest? Are we reducing principal more quickly? F. Morrison answered no, we 
will still pay interest. 
 
G. Seaman commented that having a covenant provides more flexibility than a 
bank. We would have penalties for early payment if we were using a bank.  
 



C. Chelcun expressed gratitude for those who worked out this proposal. While 
working on the stewardship campaign she learned that stewardship goals have 
become more difficult to reach. This will help. 
 
C. Stockton asked whether we can change the covenant at any time? F. Morrison 
assumes so, but it would require intense discussion among ourselves. There is a 
lot of flexibility. 
 
P. Myers is in favor of the proposal. She is struck that we are fortunate to have 
this conversation, that we have this endowment available. 
 
M. Goodwin noted that this is the ultimate in ethical and politically correct 
investment, we are investing in ourselves and the community. 
 
D. Gelperin stated that it is time for motion. 
 
MOTION by G. Feeley, to approve the covenant as written. SECONDED by P. 
Trotta;  
PASSED unanimously; 73 approved, 0 opposed, 0 abstentions. 
 
D. Gelperin thanked those who worked on the proposal. 
 
MOTION by D. Gelperin, to adjourn the meeting. SECONDED by D. Pascale;   
PASSED unanimously.  

The Congregational Meeting adjourned at 12:39 pm.  

 

Attachments: 

Repayment Covenant 

2018-2019 Operating Budget Working Draft 

 



 



 



 



 



 



 


